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Our Vision
Design and supply 

innovative food processing 
and packaging systems 

to the world
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partnerships by providing 
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Responsible
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act with integrity, and 
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Committed
Each of us is accountable 

to deliver results to all 
our stakeholders
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From the Chair

Haden and Custance (“H&C”)
The amalgamation of the machinery businesses of Mercer 
and H&C has been completed, and the sales, marketing 
and branding of the various offerings is now firmly under 
one roof. It is fair to say that the amalgamation of the 
businesses did not go as speedily as we expected but we 
now believe we are on track to continue on the strategic 
vision set out last year. We report below on the current result 
and the outlook, and by the time of our Annual Meeting, 
we anticipate being able to report on further progress.

Mercer Stainless
While it is pleasing to report on a positive result for our 
long standing and highly regarded Stainless fabrication 
business, we remain mindful that it is closely aligned 
to the fortunes of the primary produce markets, 
principally dairy. In that regard, we remain committed 
to market our capabilities to other sectors, including 
NZ’s burgeoning wine industry, amongst others.

S-Clave
We are pleased to report that the momentum has 
been maintained, and that our goals of carrying out 
field trials in a hospital facility in the calendar year 
2018, and seeing revenues in 2019, are on track. 
Having said that, both are dependent on the final 
internal testing being carried out in partnership with 
Atherton in Australia, proving to be successful, and as 
of today, we remain confident of that outcome.

Titan
I make no apology for referring to the failed Titan project 
as ‘the gift that keeps giving’, albeit, as shareholders will 
be only too aware, with not inconsiderable irony. Once 
more, during the period on which we are reporting, we 
have had to make yet another financial settlement with a 

legacy Titan customer, increasing the already significant 
losses attributable to Titan over a number of years. It is 
time to move on and draw a line under a venture whose 
cost has not only been financial, but an unwelcome and 
not inconsiderable distraction of management resource.

Last year’s report also referred to the board’s goal to 
seek relevant, diverse and talented additions to its 
numbers. Shareholders will well understand that we 
will need to make further and meaningful steps to 
profitability and stability before we are credibly able 
to attract those people, and in that regard, we have 
not achieved that goal in the year under review.

Otherwise, my thanks must go to our dedicated and 
energised teams across all the businesses, under the 
leadership of Richard Rookes, our Chief Executive, 
also noting that we continue to place the health 
and safety of our people as an absolute priority.

I have now chaired this board for just over three years – it 
has of course been challenging, but with the support of 
our ambitious and committed senior management team, 
and the agreement of the shareholders, my intention 
is to see Mercer realise its stated potential to become a 
profitable and soundly based technology driven company. 
We remain committed to that strategy - the prize is 
worth the effort, and we believe the goal is achievable.

John Dennehy 
Board Chair

As reported, the year end result for the group resulted in a loss of $7.8m, and we acknowledge some areas 
have not met expectations, and delayed our projected recovery. However, we remain firmly of the view that 
we are on the right track, albeit a year behind our plans. The board has also taken a prudent decision, in line 
with accounting standards, to fully provide for impairments whilst also derecognising the benefit of tax losses, 
which will be utilised as the company moves back into profitability in coming years.

Putting that result and our commitment to our previously stated strategy of moving to a technology led business 
in perspective, I referred last year to several key matters with which your company was engaged:
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Operating revenue of $29m was 8.2% up on prior year. This revenue growth was driven by a full year of H&C 
(the prior year included only seven months of H&C). Revenue at Mercer Stainless was down 14% to $18.5m, 
but EBITDA (prior to impairments) was up at $1.1m (from a $300k EBITDA loss in the previous year), as we 
generated stronger margins and reduced costs in the business. H&C’s revenue at $12.5m was very disappointing 
and a reflection of a concentrated sales pipeline that saw some delays. This lower sales revenue coupled with 
increased costs on the business resulted in an EBITDA loss (prior to impairments) of $1.6m for the financial year. 

Financial Performance

Corporate costs reduced from $1.6m to $889k during the 
year. This saw a group EBITDA loss (prior to impairments) of 
$1.4m, which, while disappointing, was an improvement 
on the $3.5m EBITDA loss for the prior year. 

Cash from Operations improved significantly from 
an outflow of $4.7m in the 2017 financial year to 
an outflow of $592k in the 2018 financial year. 

During the year we repaid $1.4m in debt to have total 
borrowings of $6.3m and raised $2.97m in new equity. 
This saw financing costs reduce from $723k to $490k 
in the 2018 financial year. The Company has banking 
facilities in place with BNZ through to September 2019. 

The Company made the decision to write down the value 
of a number of other balance sheet items, mostly Titan 
related, which resulted in a $1.9m provision for inventory, 
a $822k impairment of intangible assets and a $555k 
impairment of tangible assets. The key items included Titan 
Slicers (where, as previously advised, we retain a number 
of slicers returned in 2014 and 2015 of which we have 
impaired the value), goodwill (reduced to nil on Titan) and 
the write down of some other Titan related receivables. 
While again this is disappointing, it is a fair reflection of the 
performance of Titan since MGL acquired the business.

The 2018 financial year was somewhat frustrating for the Company. While we believe that we are heading in 
the right direction strategically with a focus on disruptive technology (S-Clave) and automation (H&C), the 
financial results were not where we wanted them to be. We remain committed to investing in these two 
areas as we believe they offer the greatest growth opportunities long term. 

For the financial year we saw revenue growth of 8% to $29m. Despite the positive financial performance of Mercer Stainless, the 
underperformance at H&C and a decision to write down our Titan assets and de-recognise some tax loss assets, resulted in a  
reported net loss after tax of $7.8m. 

1.	 Revenue growth of 8% to $29m 
resulting in an EBITDA loss (prior 
to impairments) of $1.4m. 

2.	 A good performance from 
Mercer Stainless, which 
generated EBITDA of $1m.

3.	 A weaker sales performance 
than forecast from H&C resulting 
in an EBITDA loss of $1.6m. 

4.	 A decision to further write down 
the value of the Titan assets, 
including goodwill, inventory 
and other receivables by $3.3m.

5.	 The de-recognition of $1.9m of 
tax assets due to accounting 
standard requirements. We note 
that the tax assets have not been 
lost and can be utilised in the 
future to offset taxable profits.

CEO Report

The key points 
to note from the 
financial year 
were as follows:
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H&C design and supply automated handling 
systems that prepare bulk products for processing. 
It is based in Hastings, New Zealand and has an 
office in Green Bay, Wisconsin. The business has a 
long and successful track record in the delivery of 
innovative systems that are built to a high quality. 
In recent years, the business had focused its efforts 
in the design and delivery of depalletizing, de-
boxing and de-bagging systems into the cheese 
converting industry in the USA and Australia. In this 
niche market, H&C is considered a world leader. We 
are now taking these specialist systems into other 
industries (red meat, horticulture, poultry and 
logistics), while also expanding our general 
automation presence in our home markets of  
New Zealand and Australia. 

As mentioned, H&C revenues did not reach expectations in 
the 2018 financial year and generated an EBITDA loss (prior to 
impairments) of $1.6m. This was due to three principal factors:

1.	 A number of large projects in the US cheese 
converting industry being delayed.

2.	 The sales strategy being too concentrated on a 
small number of US based cheese convertors. 

3.	 An increase in the cost base in the US as we 
continue to invest in that market and allocate 
relevant corporate overhead costs. 

Despite this performance, we note that H&C successfully 
completed the installation of a number of large systems 
in the US and retained its gross margins. This capability 
to deliver large systems on time and on budget remains 
a key success factor for the business and provides a solid 
reputational base from which to build the business. 

Having recognised there were issues with 
the sales strategy, we instigated the following 
strategic and operational changes:

1.	 USA: Broadening our automation offering beyond 
existing US cheese customers (the business has 
previously been focused on the de-palletization, de-box 
and de-bag systems only) and beginning marketing 
the specialist solutions to the red meat industry. In this 
regard, we recruited a senior, experienced, US domiciled 
sales person to lead the US business. We expect to 
sell the first H&C system into the red meat sector in 
the near future, which will be a significant milestone 
and should provide the platform for further growth.

2.	 NZ/AU: Re-entered the NZ/AU markets with a broader 
automation offering. We are gaining good traction, 
particularly in the horticulture sector which increasingly 
requires automation in its plants and pack houses.

3.	 Other: The General Manager left the business which allowed 
for a reset of the cost base and the operating structure. 

The current workflows at H&C are good and the pipeline 
is stronger and more diverse than it has been since 
we acquired the business. With this platform, we are 
expecting H&C to be profitable for the 2019 financial year 
and act as the driver of our transition to a technology 
led company. We encourage shareholders to look at 
H&C’s website (www.hadencustance.com) to get a sense 
of the breadth of offering and capability the company 
provides. H&C is an established business with a strong, 
loyal customer base, excellent reputation and true 
growth opportunities with its proven technology.
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The S-Clave is a patented system that sterilises 
medical equipment in a non-porous container 
system. The benefits for a hospital or medical 
centre include:

1.	 Fast turnaround a sub 20-minute cycle versus 
around an hour for the existing process

2.	 The single use container is non-porous 
so sterility can be guaranteed

3.	 The faster cycle time is more energy efficient 

4.	 The container system is better for storage and transport 

5.	 Easier for sterilisation departments to pack and handle 

The S-Clave continues to progress through final 
development. We were frustrated by a three month 
delay in the tool making which was out of our control, 
but since the tooling was received in May 2018, the 
testing has been successful. We are currently working 
through options for sealing the container and lid, after 
which the product should be ready for hospital trials. 

We continue to work closely with our Australian partner 
Atherton both on our working relationship and the 
market entry strategy. Feedback from the hospitals 
and medical centres we have shown the S-Clave to, 
continues to be positive and we remain of the view that 
the market potential for the product is significant. 

We are focused on having the S-Clave in a hospital 
by the end of the 2018 calendar year, subject to the 
pace at which final testing can be completed. 

Mercer Stainless is one of New Zealand’s leading 
stainless steel fabricators, with plants in Christchurch 
and New Plymouth. It specialises in the design and 
manufacture of large equipment for the dairy, wine 
and food sectors. It also has a high-end architectural 
benching business. 

Mercer Stainless had a good year in 2018, generating $1m of 
EBITDA (prior to impairments) off a slightly lower revenue 
base, having recorded a $300k EBITDA loss in the previous 
year. This was a result of a reduced cost base and a higher 
margin work mix. 

The business operates in a competitive, price driven sector. 
As such, we continue to seek to diversify the business away 
from a reliance on the dairy industry. We have had some 
success in the wine sector, but margins are tight and there is 
a strong, established competitor in the sector.  
We are therefore focused 
on quoting only to levels 
where our business 
can be sustainable and 
looking to continue the 
diversification strategy. 

Mercer Stainless continues 
to work through the 
Edendale process. 

  

We remain committed to the strategy of change 
for the Mercer Group. 

H&C’s outlook for the medium term is good, with 
increasing demand for automation in NZ/AU and a 
specialist, niche technology in depalletizing and de-
boxing that has global opportunity. While our current 
focus is selling our first system into the red meat industry 
in US, we believe the technology has far broader 
application in other sectors as previously referred to. 

We continue to drive the S-Clave towards a commercial 
outcome. Once we have an S-Clave unit in a hospital, we 
will further consider the appropriate structure for this 
exciting technology, such that its potential is fully realised. 

The medium term outlook for Mercer Stainless is 
adequate, noting a reported pullback in new dairy 
investment which is driving our diversification strategy. 

We also continue to be alert to other growth opportunities 
to provide us more scale. We have reviewed and 
continue to review a number of potential acquisition 
opportunities that align with our stated strategy of 
becoming a technology led, export focused company. 

Richard Rookes 
Chief Executive Officer

Outlook
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John Dennehy

Chairman

John joined the Mercer board in 
February 2015. He has served on a 
number of boards in the UK and New 
Zealand, most recently at Simcro 
Ltd, a Hamilton based R&D export 
led agritech business. John is also 
a director of Kiwi Rail Holdings and 
a member of their Risk and Audit 
Committee. He holds an honours 
degree in Economics and Accounting.

Paul Smart

Independent Director

Paul is a professional director and 
experienced finance professional. 
He is a Chartered Accountant and a 
long-standing member of the Institute 
of Directors and is currently a director 
of Intercity Group, Solarcity and a 
number of other private companies. 
Paul has had executive experience 
in start-ups, public companies, 
multi nationals and an SOE.

.

Richard Rookes

CEO

Richard was appointed CEO in July 
2015 having been on the board since 
2011. Since being appointed as CEO, 
Richard has driven the strategic and 
operational change in the business. 
Prior to taking the executive role at 
Mercer, Richard was an investment 
banker in NZ & UK. Richard holds a 
BCom, Diploma for Graduates and a 
Post Graduate Diploma in Commerce, 
all from the University of Otago..

Ian McGregor

Mercer Group Limited CFO

Ian joined Mercer in April 2016 having 
previously been CFO at Fisher & 
Paykel Finance and Manager Group 
Treasury at Fonterra, amongst other 
key commercial roles. Ian brings 
commercial acumen to the finance 
team and is implementing financial 
and operational improvements across 
the business. Ian holds a Bachelor 
of Business Studies and is a CPA.

Board of Directors

Executive Team
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Mercer Group Limited 
  For the year ended 30 June 2018

Directors' Report
In the opinion of the directors of Mercer Group Limited, the financial statements and the notes, on pages 4 to 38:

• 

• 

comply with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards and fairly represents the financial 
position of the Group as at 30 June 2018 and the results of their operations and cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.

have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies, which have been consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable judgements and estimates.

The directors believe that proper accounting records have been kept which enable, with reasonable accuracy, the 
determination of the financial position of the Group and facilitate compliance of the financial statements with the Financial 
Markets Conduct Act 2013.

The directors consider that they have taken adequate steps to safeguard the assets of the Group, and to prevent and 
detect fraud and other irregularities. Internal control procedures are also considered to be sufficient to provide reasonable 
assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the financial statements.

The directors are pleased to present the financial report, incorporating the financial statements of Mercer Group Limited 
for the year ended 30 June 2018.

The Annual Financial Statements presented are signed for and on behalf of the Board, and were authorised for issue on
29 August 2018.

John Dennehy, Board Chair. Paul Smart, Director.

Mercer Group Limited Group Financial Statements 2018 Page 3 
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Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
  For the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes

6        
7        

9        

8        
15      
16      
16      

10      

22      

24      

24      

28,819              26,622              

Fully diluted earnings per share:

Other comprehensive (loss) for the year, net of tax

(7,910)               

(7,841)               

Deficit per share attributable to shareholders of the company (cents)

Deficit from operations before finance costs and taxation

(822)                  

(5,940)               

(22)                    

Other comprehensive (loss) income

(7,910)               (6,975)               Total

(18,587)             (14,835)             

(1,421)               

Revenue
Sale of goods and contract revenue
Other income
Total income
Expenses

Deficit from operations after finance costs and taxation

(3,931)               

(4,654)               

15                     234                   
28,834              26,856              

(490)                  (723)                  

(439)                  

(6,962)               

(388)                  (437)                  

(12.60)              

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
$000 $000

- Owners of the parent

(7,910)               (6,975)               

Attributable to:

Total comprehensive (loss) for the year

(13)                    (69)                    

(5,450)               

(250)                  
-                        

Impairment of intangible assets
Restructuring costs 

Basic earnings per share: 

(69)                    (13)                    
Items that may be subsequently charged or credited to profit and loss
Currency translation differences on oversea subsidiaries

The above Group Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

(1,901)               (2,308)               
Deficit from operations after finance costs and before taxation
Income tax expense

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

Amortisation

(9,602)               (9,636)               
(411)                  

(22)                    
Depreciation

Salaries and wages
Rental and operating leases

(4,452)               (3,747)               Other expenses

Finance costs

(6,975)               

(12.60)              (16.96)              

(16.96)              Deficit per share attributable to shareholders of the company (cents)

Mercer Group Limited Group Financial Statements 2018 Page 4 
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Group Statement of Financial Position
  As at 30 June 2018

Notes

11       
       12 
       12 
       13 -          
       14 

       12 
       15 
       16 
       13 -          
       17 

       11 

       19 

       20 

       20 

21       
22       
22       

The above Group Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Total equity 4,444                9,510                
Retained earnings (42,922)             (35,081)             

Share capital 44,366              41,522              
Other reserves 3,000                3,069                

EQUITY

Net assets 4,444                9,510                

Borrowings 5,916                6,373                
Total liabilities 13,181              14,432              

Non current liabilities

Borrowings 370                   1,309                
7,265                8,059                Total current liabilities

Employee entitlements 986                   1,091                

Bank overdraft 947                   1,064                

Trade and other payables 4,935                4,595                
Derivative financial instruments 27                     -                        

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Total assets 17,625              23,942              

Total non current assets 11,510              14,646              
Investment in associate -                        16                     

Intangible assets 4,241                4,685                

Deferred tax asset 545                   2,446                

Other debtors and prepayments -                        816                   
Property, plant and equipment 6,421                6,683                

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
$000 $000

Current assets
Cash and bank balances 671                   827                   

Finance lease receivable

Finance lease receivable 303                   

13                     
Other debtors and prepayments 397                   1,229                

ASSETS

Accounts receivable 4,403                3,750                

Non current assets

Inventories 631                   3,490                
Total current assets 6,115                9,296                

Mercer Group Limited Group Financial Statements 2018 Page 5 
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Group Statement of Movements in Equity
  For the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes
Share 

capital
Retained 
earnings

Share based 
payments 

reserve

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve

Asset 
revaluation 

reserve Total equity
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Balance at 30 June 2016 33,475          (28,119)         110               -                    2,871            8,337            

Foreign currency 
translation reserve 
movement

22 -                    -                    -                    (13)                -                    (13)                

Deficit for the year 22 -                    (6,962)           -                    -                    -                    (6,962)           
Total comprehensive 
income for the year

-                    (6,962)           -                    (13)                -                    (6,975)           

Value of employee 22 -                    -                    101               -                    -                    101               
Capital raising costs (352)              -                    -                    -                    -                    (352)              
Issue of new shares 21,22 8,399            -                    -                    -                    -                    8,399            
Balance at 30 June 2017 41,522          (35,081)         211               (13)                2,871            9,510            

Foreign currency 
translation reserve 
movement

22 -                    -                    -                    (69)                -                    (69)                

Prior year adjustment -                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    
Deficit for the year 22 -                    (7,841)           -                    -                    -                    (7,841)           
Total comprehensive 
income for the year

-                    (7,841)           -                    (69)                -                    (7,910)           

Capital raising costs 21 (120)              -                    -                  -                    -                    (120)              
Issue of new shares 21 2,964            -                  -                  -                    -                    2,964            
Balance at 30 June 2018 44,366          (42,922)         211               (82)                2,871            4,444            

Attributable to the owners of the Group

The above Group Statement of Movements in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Mercer Group Limited Group Financial Statements 2018 Page 6 
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Group Statement of  Cash Flow
  For the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes

15,16

28
16

25

15
16
13
7            -

15

21
21
20

11

The Group Statement of Cash Flows is exclusive of GST.

The above Group Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

Net cash from investing activities                    (826)                       29

Purchase of patents and development activities (net)                   (399)                    (58)

Cash was provided from (to):

Purchase of Haden & Custance
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment                        12

Cash from Haden & Custance
                          -
                          -

              (1,500)
                 1,679

                      51

Finance lease                   (316)                         -
Interest received on finance lease                        15

               (1,396)                  1,135
Net cash inflow from financing activities                   1,448                  4,932

Financing activities

Capital raising costs                    (120)                    (72)

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
$000 $000

Changes in working capital

Effect of exchange rate changes                      (69)                    (13)
Cash (overdraft) at the end of the year                    (276)                  (237)

Net (decrease) increase in cash held                        30                     255
Cash (Overdraft) at beginning of the year                    (237)                  (479)

Issue of new shares                   2,964                  3,869
Drawdown (repayment) of borrowings

Operating activities
Deficit after tax                (7,841)               (6,962)

Provision (cost) for restructuring continuing operations

Income tax recognised in Group Statement of Comprehensive Income                   1,901                  2,308

                     410
                    723

Depreciation and amortisation

(467)                    Debtors provision

Cash was provided (to) from :
Purchase of property, plant and equipment                   (138)

Finance costs                      490

                 (143)

                   (592)               (4,706)

-                          
-                          

                        -
                    101

Interest paid                    (490)                  (723)

                     822
                        -
                    250

              (1,227)
              (3,983)

Investing activities

                    459

-                          

                    983

                 (618)

1,441                  

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Inventory provision

Impairment of intangible assets
                       27
                  3,115

Loss gain on sale of plant & equipment
Share based payment

Derivative financial instruments

Net cash outflow before finance costs                    (102)

Mercer Group Limited Group Financial Statements 2018 Page 7 
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements
  For the year ended 30 June 2018

•

•

•

1. General information

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. Information on the application of the
going concern assumption is included in Note 3.

The financial statements are for the consolidated economic entity comprising Mercer Group Limited and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”). 

Mercer Group Limited (the company) is a limited liability company which is incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand.
The address of its registered office is 53 Lunns Rd, Sockburn, Christchurch. It is registered under the Companies Act
1993 and is an FMC reporting entity under the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013. 

The Group comprises Mercer Group Limited and its wholly owned subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 18. The core
activities of Mercer Group are:

The Group is designated as a profit oriented entity for financial reporting purposes.

(a) Basis of preparation

Stainless Fabrication: This division includes workshops in Christchurch and New Plymouth operated by Mercer 
Stainless Limited. The primary business is the design and manufacture of proprietary equipment mainly for the dairy 
and wine sectors. It has also operated the group's food processing and packaging brands.

Haden & Custance: This division designs, manufactures, delivers and services automated robotic handling systems to 
a range of industries. In the current year the existing Aico, Beta and Titan Slicer product ranges have been  
manufactured at H&C as well as their own  custom solutions form this division.

Mercer Technologies: The division manages the research and development of the Mercer Group. Currently focused 
on commercializing the S-Clave.

Mercer Group Limited is a public company registered under the Companies Act 1993 and is listed with the New Zealand
Stock Exchange (NZX).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NZ IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates and judgements. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Statutory base

Entities reporting

The financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 August 2018.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Financial Markets Conduct Act
2013. In accordance with the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013 separate financial statements for the parent company
are no longer required.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (NZ GAAP) and comply with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards (NZ IFRS). They also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and other applicable
New Zealand Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate for profit-oriented entities.

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of land and buildings and certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

Mercer Group Limited Group Financial Statements 2018 Page 8 
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements cont
  For the year ended 30 June 2018

• has power over the investee; and
• is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
• has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

Profit or loss is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interest. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between the
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The
consideration of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the profit or loss. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Costs of acquisitions are expensed as incurred.

(b) Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date the Company gains
control until the date when the company ceases to control the subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of the Company and all entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee where facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the
voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
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recognised directly in the profit or loss. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
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during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date the Company gains
control until the date when the company ceases to control the subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of the Company and all entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee where facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the
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Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
increased or decreased to recognise the investors’ share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the statement of comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

(c) Segment reporting

NZ IFRS 8 Operating Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker.

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Board of Directors who review the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and to allocate funding and resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the subsidiaries’ operations are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which it operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in
New Zealand dollars, which is Mercer Group Limited’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency. All
financial information presented in New Zealand dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the profit or loss.

(iii) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each Statement of Financial Position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that Statement of Financial Position; and
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On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to foreign currency
translation reserve in shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods and services, excluding Goods and Services Tax, rebates and
discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when the Group has delivered products to the customer, the customer has accepted the
products and the revenue can be measured reliably.

(ii) Construction contracts
Contract revenue and expenses are recognised over the life of the contract in accordance with the percentage of
completion method unless the outcome of the contract cannot be reliably estimated. Where it is probable that a loss will
arise from a construction contract, the excess of total costs over revenue is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where the outcome of the contract cannot be reliably estimated, contract costs are recognised as an expense as
incurred, and where it is probable that the costs will be recovered, revenue is recognised to the extent of costs incurred.

For fixed price contracts, the stage of completion is measured by reference to costs incurred to date as a percentage of
estimated total contract costs for each contract. Revenue from cost plus contracts is recognised by reference to the
recoverable costs incurred during the reporting period plus the percentage of fees earned. The percentage of fees
earned is measured by the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the estimated total costs of the contract.

(iii) Grants
Grants from the Government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

When the requirements under the Grant agreement have been met, grants received relating to costs are recognised in
the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate. Where
the grant is funding an asset the grant is credited against the asset value.

Any grants for which the requirements under the grant agreement have not been completed are carried as liabilities until
all the conditions have been fulfilled.

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income.

(v) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

(vi) Royalty income
Royalty income is recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

(f) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
national income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements, and to unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the
assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted for
each jurisdiction.
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On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to foreign currency
translation reserve in shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods and services, excluding Goods and Services Tax, rebates and
discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when the Group has delivered products to the customer, the customer has accepted the
products and the revenue can be measured reliably.

(ii) Construction contracts
Contract revenue and expenses are recognised over the life of the contract in accordance with the percentage of
completion method unless the outcome of the contract cannot be reliably estimated. Where it is probable that a loss will
arise from a construction contract, the excess of total costs over revenue is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where the outcome of the contract cannot be reliably estimated, contract costs are recognised as an expense as
incurred, and where it is probable that the costs will be recovered, revenue is recognised to the extent of costs incurred.

For fixed price contracts, the stage of completion is measured by reference to costs incurred to date as a percentage of
estimated total contract costs for each contract. Revenue from cost plus contracts is recognised by reference to the
recoverable costs incurred during the reporting period plus the percentage of fees earned. The percentage of fees
earned is measured by the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the estimated total costs of the contract.

(iii) Grants
Grants from the Government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

When the requirements under the Grant agreement have been met, grants received relating to costs are recognised in
the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate. Where
the grant is funding an asset the grant is credited against the asset value.

Any grants for which the requirements under the grant agreement have not been completed are carried as liabilities until
all the conditions have been fulfilled.

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income.

(v) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

(vi) Royalty income
Royalty income is recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

(f) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
national income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements, and to unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the
assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted for
each jurisdiction.
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The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure
the deferred tax asset or liability. An exception is made for certain temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of an asset or a liability. No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to these temporary
differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not
affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Leases of property, plant and equipment (PPE) where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in borrowings. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The interest element of the finance cost is charged
to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The PPE under finance leases are depreciated on the same basis as equivalent property,
plant and equipment.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the profit or loss on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

The Statement of Comprehensive Income has been prepared so that all components are stated exclusive of GST. All
items in the Statement of Financial Position are stated net of GST, with the exception of receivables and payables, which
include GST invoiced.

(g) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

(h) Leases

Tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not
ready for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment irrespective of whether any
circumstances identifying a possible impairment have been identified. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell, and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term
deposits, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown separately under current liabilities in the Group Statement of Financial Position.

The income tax expense or revenue attributable to amounts recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. The associated current or deferred tax
balances are recognised in these accounts as usual.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities of individual entities are reported separately in the consolidated financial
statements unless the entities have a legally enforceable right to make or receive a single net payment of tax and the
entities intend to make or receive such a net payment or to recover the current tax asset or settle the current tax liability
simultaneously.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

(j) Cash and cash equivalents
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(k) Trade receivables

Raw materials and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct
materials and where applicable, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure,
the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on
the basis of weighted average costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Contract work in progress is stated at the aggregate of contract costs incurred to date, plus recognised profits, less
recognised losses and progress billings. Cost includes all expenses directly related to specific contracts including direct
materials, labour and production overheads.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method less provision for impairment.

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the profit or loss within 'other expenses'. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against an allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against 'other expenses' in the profit or loss.

(l) Inventories

The Group assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimate future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is
recognised in the profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of
selling the receivable. Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value on trade date plus transaction costs.
Trade date is the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. They are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. They are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. 

Loans and receivables

(n) Derivatives

(i) Raw materials and finished goods

(ii) Contract work in progress

Derivatives are recognised on trade date and derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(m) Investments and other financial assets

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured to their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are recognised immediately in the profit
or loss.

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
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(o) Fair value estimation

(p) Property, plant and equipment

(q) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition or construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed.

The cost of assets constructed by the Group includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on the
project and an appropriate proportion of directly attributable variable and fixed overheads. Costs cease to be capitalised
as soon as the asset is ready for productive use and do not include any inefficiency costs.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for
disclosure purposes.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market rates at the balance 
date.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (e.g. over the counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques.

Land and buildings are shown at fair value, based on periodic, but at least every five year valuations by external
independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation
is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the
asset. All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. Each of those cash-generating units
represents the Group’s investment in each primary reporting segment.

- Buildings 3%

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired business at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of businesses is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill is not amortised. Instead, goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost,
net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These gains and losses
are included in the profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold it is company policy to transfer the amounts included in
other reserves in respect of those assets to retained earnings.

- Plant and equipment 5.5% - 67%
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(ii) Research and development
Expenditure on research activities, net of any grants receivable, is recognised in the profit or loss as an expense when it
is incurred.

Intellectual property directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique products controlled by the
Group are recognised as intangible assets only when all the following criteria are met:

• it is technically feasible to complete the product so that it is available for use or sale; and
• management is able to and intends to complete the product and use or sell it; and
• there is an ability to use or sell the product; and
• it can be demonstrated that the product will generate future economic benefits; and
• the expenditure attributable to the product during its development can be reliably measured; and
• adequate technical, financial and other resources are available to complete the development and to use or sell the
product.

Directly attributable costs capitalised as part of the product would include employee costs and an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads.

Other intellectual property expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Intellectual property recognised as an asset, less impairments if any, are amortised over its useful economic lives, not
exceeding twenty years.

(iii) Patents, trademarks and licences
Patents, trademarks and licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost of patents, trademarks
and licences over their estimated useful lives, not exceeding twenty years.

(r) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial period
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within normal terms of trade.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

(s) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the balance date.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. The capitalisation rate used to determine the
amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the entity's outstanding
borrowings during the year.

(t) Provisions

Provisions for restructuring, legal and warranty claims are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties
and employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item in the same class of obligation may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

(u) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

(v) Employee entitlements

(i) Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits, annual leave, and accumulating sick leave expected
to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised separately in current liabilities in respect of employees
services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at the rates paid or
payable.

(ii) Long service leave
The liability for long service leave is recognised in the employee entitlements liability, and is measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date
using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of
employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the
balance date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash flows.

(iii) Short-term employee benefits
Employee entitlements to salaries and wages, annual leave and sick leave to be settled within 12 months of balance date
represent present obligations resulting from employees' services provided up to the balance date, calculated at
undiscounted amounts based on remuneration rates that the Group expects to pay.

(w) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared on or before the balance date but not distributed at balance
date.

(x) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the Group, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the Group by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares on issue during the year adjusted to assume conversion of dilutive potential of ordinary shares as a result
of warrants on issue, and the issue of share options when the average market price of ordinary shares during the period
exceeds the exercise price of the share option.
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• NZ IFRS 16 Leases is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. NZ IFRS 16 addresses
recognition of leases. It replaces the current lease guidance in NZ IAS 17 Leases and is applicable to all entities with
leases. It removes the distinction between operating and finance leases with the right to use an asset under operating
leases along with the associated obligations to pay rentals recorded as assets and liabilities respectively. However, there
are some exemptions for short term leases and leases of low value assets. The group is yet to assess NZ IFRS 16's full
impact. The group will apply this standard from 1 July 2019.

• NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. NZ IFRS 9
addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. It replaces the parts
of NZ IAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement of financial instruments, hedge accounting and
impairment. NZ IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two measurement categories: those measured as at
fair value and those measured at amortised cost. The determination is made at initial recognition. The classification
depends on the entity’s business model for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the NZ IAS 39 requirements. 

In cases where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the component of a fair value change due to an entity's
own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless this creates an
accounting mismatch. The group intends to apply this standard from 1 July 2018. The Group is yet to assess NZ IFRS 9's
full impact.

• NZ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. NZ IFRS 15 addresses recognition of revenue from contracts with customers. It replaces the current revenue
recognition guidance in NZ IAS 18 Revenue and NZ IAS 11 Construction Contracts and is applicable to all entities with
revenue. It sets out a five step model for revenue recognition to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. The group is yet to assess NZ IFRS 15's full impact, however point of revenue recognition for
construction contract revenue could change under this new standard which may result in significant measurement
differences between years. The group will apply this standard from 1 July 2018.

Notes to the Group Financial Statements cont
For the year ended 30 June 2018

(y) Share based payments

The Group operates a share-based compensation plan under which it receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments in the Group. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
equity instruments is recognised as an expense. The total amount expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. Employee tax obligations payable by the Group in connection with the grant of the
share options is considered an integral part of the grant itself, and the charge will be treated as a cash-settled transaction.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of equity instruments that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
the profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment in equity.

When the vesting conditions are met the company issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are added to share capital and the balance in the equity settled share based payments
reserve is also transferred to share capital.

(z) Changes in accounting policies

There have been no changes in accounting policies from those applied by the Group in the financial statements as at
30 June 2018. No new accounting standards or interpretations have been adopted during the year which have had a
material impact on these financial statements

(aa) New accounting standards and interpretations

The accounting policies set out in these financial statements are consistent for all periods presented in these financial
statements.

New or revised standards and interpretations that have been approved but are not yet effective have not been adopted by
the group for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2018. The adoption of these standards and interpretations is not
expected to have a material recognition or measurement impact on the group’s financial statements unless otherwise
stated below. These will be applied when they become mandatory. The significant items are:
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NZ IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates and judgements concerning the future. The resulting estimates may not equal related actual results. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The judgements, estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities are discussed below.

Impairment Testing

Judgements have been made in relation to capitalisation of development assets and related patents as disclosed in
Note 16. These judgements include an assessment of the technical feasibility of the projects, the intention to complete,
use or sell the assets, the existence of a market for the assets and the availability of resources to complete the
developments. If any of these criteria ceased to be met then the carrying value of development assets may be impaired.

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Intangible Assets

The Group and Company have recognised a deferred tax asset, a component of which relates to New Zealand tax losses
available for offset against future taxable profits, as detailed in Note 17. Management has applied consideration around
the shareholder continuity rule and the probability of generating future taxable profits in the foresseable future in
determining  whether a deferred tax asset should continue to be recognised and the quantum of this asset.

Work in Progress

Deferred Tax Asset

Construction revenue and expenses are recognised in accordance with the percentage of completion method unless the
outcome of the project cannot be reliably measured. This involves both judgement and estimation by management of
total contract revenues including any variations as compared to costs to date and remaining costs to completion. Work in
progress is detailed in Note 14.

Cash flow forecasts and capital adequacy considerations
The financial statements have been prepared using the going concern assumption. For the year ended 30 June 2018 the
Group recorded a net deficit after finance costs and taxation of $7,841,000 The net loss includes a number of costs
relating to the rationalisation of the business including restructuring of the machines division. The net loss also includes
impairment and write-down costs as a result of the review of the Titan business.

Prior to balance date the Company renegotiated its banking facilities, which include covenants which first become
applicable as at 31 December 2018.The Company maintains two term facilities with limits of $5,000,000 and $1,316,480.
Both these facilities mature on 30 September 2019. The Company also had a total of $1,250,000 overdraft facilities with
$303,000 available limit at balance date, the Group also had cash balances of $671,000 on hand as at balance date. As
at balance date the available limit and cash provided liquidity of $974,000. 

Fair Value Measurement and Valuation Processes
Some of the group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or liability, the Group uses market observable data to the extent it is available. The Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in Notes 4 and 15.

Goodwill has been tested for impairment based on the higher of value in use or fair value less costs to sell. Determining
value in use and fair value less costs to sell includes a number of assumptions including future growth and the discount
rate applicable to the cash-generating units to which goodwill is allocated. Goodwill impairment testing including key
assumptions are detailed in Note 16. 
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Included in the overdraft facilities is a temporary facility which was $1,500,000 at 30 June 2017, this has been reduced to
$250,000 as at 30 June 2018. The balance of the temporary facility expires in September 2018. The Company is planning
to review capital requirements at the half year of 2018 depending on growth requirements to support its businesses.
During the year the Company repaid in full a $306,000 loan to Gresham Finance Limited with the discharge of all
financing obligations. Gresham Finance is an affiliated company of Humphry Rolleston, a former director and current
majority shareholder.

During the year a strategy change was implemented which broadens Haden & Custance (H&C) sales focus from cheese
handling equipment to other protein sectors; poultry and red meat. H&C have identified demand for automation solutions
that H&C offer, particularly in North America. Also during the year H&C has invested in its sales resource in North
America to execute on the strategy. With the banking facilities renegotiated, the board has approved a budget and cash
flow forecast that shows the Group returning to profitability and positive operating cash flow for the year ended 30 June
2019. Key assumptions to this forecast is revenue growth of at least 10%, operational expediture reduction reflecting the
restructured operations and capital expediture requirements. Funding arrangements noted above are assumed to
continue throughout the forecast period. The Group has an EBITDA covenant to be tested at 31 December 2018 and
then at 30 June 2019. The Directors believe the going concern assumption is valid and have reached this conclusion
having regard to the circumstances which they consider likely to affect the Group during the period of at least one year
from the date these financial statements are approved. A change of 10% on revenue maintaining the same margins will
keep the Group within the bank covenants.

The Directors remain confident that the factors above, and an improved operating cashflow, will support the business in
the future. Therefore the Directors believe that it continues to be appropriate to prepare financial statements on a going
concern basis.

While the Directors remain confident as to the Group's future, if the Group was unable to continue as a going concern, to
operate and pay debts as and when they become due, adjustments would have to be made to reflect the situation that
assets may need to be realised and liabilities extinguished other than in the normal course of business and at amounts
which could differ significantly from the amounts at which they are currently recorded.

4. Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; market risk (including currency risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group.

The Group may use derivative financial instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge certain foreign
currency risk exposures. Derivatives are exclusively used for hedging purposes (while hedge accounting is not applied as
the Group does not meet the hedge accounting criteria), i.e. not as trading or other speculative instruments. The Group
uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These methods include sensitivity
analysis in the case of interest rate and foreign exchange to determine market risk and aging analysis for credit risk.

The Board provides a framework for overall risk management which identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group's operating units. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management covering
specific areas such as exchange rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments.
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Finance lease receivables

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group has exposure to foreign exchange risk as a result of transactions denominated in foreign currencies, arising
from normal trading activities. Where exposures are certain it is the Group's policy to economically hedge these risks as
they arise. The Group uses forward foreign exchange currency contracts to manage these exposures. As at 30 June
2018 the Group had $1,479,000  (2017: NIL ) of foreign exchange risk contracts.
The following table shows the sensitivity of the Group's after tax profit and equity to a movement in the exchange rate of
+/-10% with all other variables held constant, which the directors consider reasonably possible.

Group 2017
Cash and cash equivalents                       827                         -                           -                       -

                   1,243                         -                           -                       -Receivable from associate and other debtors

Trade and other payables                           -                         -  -            (4,595)

(a) Market risk

Derivative financial instruments                           -                         -                           -                 (27)

                   6,190                         -                           -          (13,341)
Borrowings and overdraft                           -                         -                           -            (8,746)

                      370Deferred consideration for sale of Interiors Division                       -                          -                        -

Borrowings and overdraft                           -                         -                           -            (7,233)
                   5,719                         -                           -          (12,195)

Trade receivables                    3,750                         -                           -                       -

                      -

Trade and other payables                           -                           -            (4,935)

                      329                         -                           -                       -

                        -

Receivable from associate and other debtors
                        -                           -                       -                      316

                   76

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents                       671                         -                           -                       -
Group 2018

$000 $000  $000 $000 

Cash / Loans 
and receivables

Financial 
assets at fair 

value through 
profit and loss

Financial 
liabilities at fair 

value through 
profit and loss

liabilities 
held at 

amortised 
cost

Trade receivables                    4,403                         -                           -

                      -
                      -

                 401
                 408

              (108)

1,017              

                 199
                   41

                       (7)

                     (64)
                   (102)

                   (64)
                 (102)

                 635
              1,017

-10% and $000+10% and $000

Equity

Post tax Profit 
Increase 

(decrease)Equity

Post tax Profit 
Increase 

(decrease)

The following table shows the assets and (liabilities) of the Group denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the Company (denoted in NZD).

                   64
102                 

                       64
                     102

Foreign 
currency 

amount 
assets 

(liabilities)

Group - $000

30 June 2018
30 June 2017

30 June 2017
$000

Cash

Concentrations of foreign currency exposure

US Dollar

United States dollar
Euro

                          -

                     (58)

Euro
Trade payables
Australian dollar

Australian dollar
United States dollar

                      -

United States dollar                      (27)
Derivative Financal Instruments

Trade receivables

                   (150)

635                     

UK Pound

30 June 2018
$000

                     137

                         3
                     737
                          -

                          -

Canadian dollar
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(b) Credit risk

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

                     51
30 June 2017 7,693                   (54)                (54)                    54                  54                     
30 June 2018                    7,233                (51)                    (51)                   51

Equity

Financial liabilities

Carrying 
amount

Post tax 
profit Equity Post tax 

profit

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

Mercer Group Limited can enter into interest rate swaps and forward rate agreements to manage its interest rate risk
although no such instruments are in place at balance date (2017: Nil).

The following table shows the sensitivity of the Group's after tax profit and equity to a movement in interest rates of +/-1
percentage point (pp) which the directors consider reasonably possible. The total amount of interest bearing debt at
balance date of the Group on which interest is not fixed is $7,233,000 (2017: $7,693,000 ).

Group $'000 +1 pp and $'000 -1 pp and $'000

In its normal course of business the Group is subject to, and manages its exposure, to credit risk from trade debtors and
transactions with financial institutions. The Group manages its exposure to this credit risk. Limits on exposure with
counterparties have been set and are monitored on a regular basis. The Group enters into financial instruments with
various counterparties in accordance with established limits as to credit rating and dollar limits and does not require
collateral or other security to support the financial instruments. The carrying amounts of financial assets recognised in
the Statement of the Financial Position best represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date, along with guarantees in Note 26.

Refer to Note 12 for more information on impairment of trade receivables.

At 30 June 2018 the Group had no exposure to any significant debtor greater than 10% of net equity (2017: NIL
exposure).

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. This is considered further in Note 3.

(c) Liquidity risk
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Balance 
at 30 June

Less 
than one 

year

Between 
one and 

two years

Between 
two and 

five years
Total 

cashflow
$000

6.70% 7,233        7,758              
4,935        4,935              

12,168    12,693           

6.07% 7,693        8,216              
4.63% 349           358                 

4,595        4,595              
13.10% 398           450                 
12.00% 306           306                 

13,341      13,925            

The fair value of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and borrowings are determined to be
equivalent to their carrying value.

The Group's capital comprises ordinary shares, retained earnings and other reserves. The Group's objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure the Group may adjust the amounts of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as equity divided by total assets. 

Equity $'000
Total assets $'000
Equity Ratio

30 June 2018
$000

             4,444
           17,625

(e) Fair value hierarchy

              39.7%            25.2%

$000

             23,942

30 June 2017

(d) Capital risk management

Gresham Finance loan

30 June 2017

The Group was compliant with banking covenants at 30 June 2018.

               9,510

Bank loans & Overdrafts
Other loans
Trade and other payables
Gresham deferred payable

Total

1,405            

-                     Trade and other payables 4,935            -                          
Total -                     6,072                  6,621            

-                     

• BNZ Bank Loans. $6,072,000 (including interest and principle) is due between one and two years. The principle
balance is $6,286,000 (2017: $6,629,000). See Note 20.

30 June 2018

Effective 
interest rate

$000$000

6,072                  Bank loans & Overdrafts 1,686            

All financial liabilities are due in less than 12 months with the exception of liabilities associated with:

Contingent liabilities disclosed in Note 26 amount to $3,904,000 (2017: $5,069,000). If these amounts become payable,
the liabilities would fall due in less than 12 months.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and net settled derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period on the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual non-discounted cash flows and include interest.

$000

358               
4,595            

450               
306               

7,114            6,811                  

-                     
-                     
-                     
-                     
-                     
-                     

6,811                  
-                          
-                          
-                          
-                          
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Customers larger than 10% of total group revenue in accordance with NZ IFRS 8.34 :

Customer A
Customer B

-                     
-                     
-                     

-                       
-                       
-                       -                    

(1,938)       
(822)          
(857)          

-              
-              
-              

-                    
-                    
-                    

-                       
23,942              

-                       
Total sales, EBITDA, assets
Depreciation and amortisation

(6,962)            

-              

(7,841)       Total sales, deficit after tax, 
(2,308)            

-                    -                    
-                    

-                    
26,622          

-                       

-                       
17,624    

(490)          

(1,901)       
23,942              

(459)               
(723)               

-              

892                   
$000
(298)               

5,697                Haden & Custance (1,595)       

5. Segment information

Stainless Fabrication

The Group is organised into the following reportable segments by product and services type:

The table below shows the sales revenue, earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and impairments
(EBITDA) and assets by segment.

Stainless Fabrication: This division includes workshops in Christchurch and New Plymouth operated by Mercer
Stainless Limited. The primary business is the design and manufacture of proprietary equipment mainly for dairy and
wine sectors. It has also operated the groups food processing and packaging brands.

Corporate: This division includes Mercer Group Limited, the Parent Company and the head office activities within
Mercer Stainless Limited. The segment result includes rental received from other segments in respect of properties
owned and occupied by Mercer Stainless Limited. Goodwill previously included in Corporate has been allocated to the
relevant reportable segment.

30 June 2017 

Mercer Technologies: The division holds the S-clave technology which the group is in the process of commercialising.

Haden & Custance: This division designs, manufactures, delivers and services automated robotic handling systems to
a range of industries. In the current year he existing Aico, Beta and Titan Slicer product ranges have been manufactured
by H&C, as well as their own customised solutions form this division.

30 June 2018

Total sales 
of goods 

and contract 
revenue

$000

8,222            (1,626)            

Corporate
Intersegment eliminations

Segment 
assets

$000

Segment 
assets

$000

2,919      

$000
1,270      

Segment 
result 

(EBITDA)
$000

(1,576)            
3,877                

1,055        

Segment 
result 

(EBITDA)

13,476              
Mercer Technologies 28                   

12,503          

Total sales 
of goods 

and contract 
revenue

-                    
(2,204)           

18,514          21,570          

-                    

28,819          

9,544      
-                     

65                 3,891      
(887)          

-                

6                   5               

(3,235)           
(1,422)       26,622          (3,472)            17,624    

-              
-              

(410)          

Transactions between segments are accounted for using the same accounting policies as set out in these financial
statements. The intersegment eliminations are predominately sales between Stainless Fabrication and Haden &
Custance.

Properties, deferred tax balances and certain development assets in progress have been included in the Corporate 

Finance costs

28,819          
Income tax credit (charge)

4,284              

-                    

-                    

3,518              
3,792                
3,479                

$000
30 June 2018 30 June 2017

$000

Inventory Adjustments
Impairment of Intangible Assets
Impairment of tangible Assets

-                    
-                    
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Haden & Custance
Mercer Technologies

97                     67                     

939                   

$000

 Non-current assets, excluding the deferred tax asset, analysed by segment was: 

258                   
3,891                 Mercer Technologies 

6,700                

706                   

30 June 2018 
$000

1,122                

 30 June 2017 

Depreciation and amortisation analysed by segment was:

75                     

Total
Corporate

Stainless Fabrication

61                     
459                   

210                   

27                     
19                     

410                   

312                   

30 June 2018
$000 $000

30 June 2017

10,965              

 Other 
 Total 

12,200              
1                       

 Total 

 6. Sale of goods and contract revenue 

 30 June 2017 
$000

 Sale of goods 
 Construction contract revenue 
 Total 

 7. Other Income 

 Stainless Fabrication 

 Corporate 

 Haden & Custance 

 30 June 2017 

3,855                

 New Zealand 
 Australia and USA 

12,200              

 Non-current assets, excluding the deferred tax asset, analysed by geographical location was: 

5,694                
10,965              

$000

12,200              
-                        

30 June 2018 
$000

10,964              

 Total 

26,406              
26,622              

30 June 2018 
$000

-                        
28,819              
28,819              

216                   

234                   
234                   

30 June 2018 
$000

15                     
15                     

 30 June 2017 
$000
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8. Other expenses

The deficit for the year is stated after taking into account the following specific expenses:

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
 Notes $000 $000

25                    (170)                  
88                    73                     

       12 (467)                51                     
303                  -                        
749                  -                        
101                  101                   
75                    111                   

188                  147                   
136                  108                   

88                    97                     
36                    50                     

400                  341                   
139                  112                   

       28 154                  104                   
188                  490                   
32                    81                     

781                  634                   
53                    43                     

236                  187                   
-                      101                   

31                    121                   
-                      26                     

477                  452                   
21                    16                     

-                      6                       
10                    2                       
12                    7                       
18                    25                     

                    95 90                     
                  483 341                   

4,452               3,747                

Bank charges
Electricity costs

Foreign exchange (gains)/losses
Advertising
Movement in doubtful debts provision

Communication costs
Postage, printing and stationery

Bad debts written off
Impairment of other debtors

Employee on-costs
Superannuation

Repairs and maintenance

Accident Compensation premiums
Insurance
Vehicle expenses
Directors fees
Consultancy fees
Legal

9. Salaries and wages

Salaries and wages exclude the following amounts that have been recovered into labour for internally generated
development assets $155,000 (2017: $156,000).

Audit of financial statements - relating to prior year

Share-based payment expense

Taxation services
Advisory services - New Accounting Standard Workshop

Other expenses
Other expenses from continuing operations

Entertainment
Fees paid to Auditors (Deloitte Limited)

Audit of financial statements - relating to current year        

Recruitment

Research and development
Subcontractors
Travel and accommodation

Other assurance services

Staff amenities, safety & training
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 Notes 

       17 

(1,064)                       
(237)                          

Bank overdrafts are secured by a composite debenture over the Group's assets supported by a registered first charge
over the properties, at a floating rate.

11. Cash and bank balances

Cash at bank and in hand
Total cash and bank balances
Less bank overdrafts
Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement

30 June 2017
$000 $000

671                      
671                      

827                           
827                           

30 June 2018

(947)                     
(276)                     

Bank overdrafts

Deferred tax

Credits available to shareholders of the company

(d) Imputation credit account

Income tax charge

(c) Tax Losses

2,308                        

-                           -                                

At 30 June 2018 there were $19,408,000 (2017:10,171,000) of unrecognised New Zealand tax losses, representing a tax 
benefit of $5,434,000 (2017: 2,848,000). 

Total Income tax charge 1,901                   

Current tax

Tax losses forfeited -                           2,118                        
Prior year tax adjustment

(4,654)                       

                           -
1,901                   

                                -
2,308                        
2,308                        

2,308                        

1,901                   

30 June 2018
$000

30 June 2017
$000

At 30 June 2018 there were $12,084,000 (2017:$12,171,000) of unrecognised Australian tax losses, representing a tax 
benefit of $3,625,000 (2017: $3,651,000). 

Tax losses are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise the losses in the
foreseeable future. The carry forward losses recognised as a deferred tax asset in New Zealand are subject to
shareholder continuity requirements.
The Group’s shareholding continuity for the 2010 and earlier income years is less than the required threshold of 49%
following the rights issue in November 2016. Therefore the Group’s tax losses for the 2010 and earlier income years
were forfeited in the 2017 financial year.

In 2018, the group has decided to derecognise a defered tax asset of $1,901,000. While the directors remain confident of
generating taxable profits in the future for the reason outlined in note 3, it has been deemed appropriate to take the
benefits of the tax losses as profits are generated.

10. Income tax

(a) Income tax charge 

30 June 2018
$000

30 June 2017
$000

(33)                       

1,901                   

246                      

Expenditure not deductible for tax
Current year tax (profit) losses in Australia and USA not recognised

764                      

Income tax charge 

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie 
tax payable
Deficit before tax expense

Tax at the New Zealand rate of 28% (1,663)                  

(5,940)                  

81                             
116                           

314                           
(1,303)                       

982                           
-                                

Tax losses not recognised 2,587                   
Other -                           
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12. Accounts receivable, other debtors and prepayments

The provision relating to inventories which have been written down to estimated net realisable value amounted to
$2,523,000 (2017: 1,082,000). 

1,022                
1,774                

3,490                631                   

Raw materials and components
Finished goods
Total inventories

Total aggregate costs incurred and recognised profits (less recognised losses) to date
Less: progressive billings
Net work in progress for ongoing contracts (1,781)               (371)                  

$000

2,839                

30 June 2017
$000

1,015                
(1,386)               

285                   

638                   

(2,066)               

30 June 2018
14. Inventories

Construction contracts

114                   
370                   

143                   
1,229                

Deferred consideration for sale of Interiors Division
Receivables from Associate 
Prepayments

289                   
816                   -                        

397                   

-                        

13. Finance lease receivable
30 June 2018 30 June 2017

$000 $000
Current Finance lease receivable

329                   602                   

Included in long term other debtors and prepayments in 2017 are S-Clave licencing costs that have been transferred to 
intangible assets in 2018. 

Total
Prepayments -                        

30 June 2017
$000

30 June 2018
$000

Receivables from Associate

Total

Long term
Other debtors and prepayments

527                   -                        

Provision for doubtful debts at 1 July
Decrease (Increase) in provision 467                   

(485)                  
(51)                    

(536)                  

Total accounts receivables

Impairment provision

(536)                  
3,750                4,403                

30 June 2017

4,286                
Current 
Trade receivables

30 June 2018
$000

4,472                
(69)                    

$000

Less provision for doubtful receivables

Past due and impaired receivables
1 to 3 months

Provision for doubtful debts at 30 June

Past due but not impaired receivables

(69)                    

69                     
69                     

(536)                  

-                        
536                   
536                   

-                        

The Group entered into a finance lease arangment for multiple Silo's. The term of the lease is 16 years. Lease payments 
outstanding $624,720 which includes unearned income of $323,360 at an effective interest rate 11.7%

Non Current Finance lease receivable
13                     

303                   
-                        
-                        

316                  -                       

Over 3 months

1 to 3 months

Current
Other debtors and prepayments
Other debtors

-                        
68                     

Management considers that receivables past due, but not impaired, are fully collectible in the ordinary course of
business. 

3,686                
64                     

3,750                

4,400                
3                       

4,403                
Over 3 months
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Fair value hierarchy

30 June 2017
$000

(1,080)              
1,946               

3,026               

The properties are subject to a registered first charge in favour of Bank of New Zealand Limited.

If revalued land and buildings were held at historic cost, the following amounts would be recognised:

30 June 2018
$000

3,026              
(1,171)             

1,855              

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

-                    
-                    
-                    

2,654            2,751            

138                 138                  

2,654            
(171)              

(388)                 

Group

Land and buildings at 53 Lunns Road, Christchurch was revalued to $4,250,000, less $857,000 worth of estimated
earthquake repair costs on 30 June 2016. Land and buildings at Corbett Rd, Bell Block was revalued to $2,100,000 on
30 June 2016. The values were determined by independent registered valuers, CBRE (Christchurch) Limited and Telfer
Young (Taranaki) Limited, on the basis of open market value for the highest and best use for the properties. The
primary approach used by the valuers was the investment approach which involves capitalising the net market income
at an appropriate market derived rate of return to reflect the use, demand and risk associated with the properties and
includes comparison with rental and sales evidence of other similar properties. The carrying amounts of land and
buildings are not significantly different from their fair value at 30 June 2018.

-                    
-                    

1,101              

-                    
-                    

(86)                
-                    

2,654            2,751            

(86)                
2,751            

-                    

2,666            
-                    

-                    

(303)                

Buildings
$000

2,837            
-                    

2,837            

2,837            6,781               
143                  
247                  

(437)                 
(51)                   

1,290              
143                 
247                 

(351)                

2,654            

At 30 June 2017
Cost/Valuation
Accumulated depreciation

1,278              

(7,643)             
1,278              

(7,729)              
6,683               

-                    
2,654            

(51)                  
6,683               

8,921              

2,654            

Net book value

Closing net book value

15. Property, plant and equipment

Total
$000

14,222             
(7,441)              

6,781               

Plant and 
equipment

$000

8,731              
(7,441)             

1,290              

Freehold 
land
$000

2,654            
-                    

Depreciation
Disposals

Depreciation
Disposals

Net book value

Year ended 30 June 2018
6,683               1,278              

14,412             2,837            2,654            

Opening net book value
Additions

At 1 July 2016
Cost/Valuation
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended 30 June 2017
Opening net book value
Additions
Additions from Haden and Custance acquisition

2,837            

(85)                
-                    

(7,809)             

At 30 June 2018
Cost/Valuation

1,101              
(12)                   

6,421               
-                    

2,654            

Accumulated depreciation
8,910              

(12)                  

14,401             
(7,980)              

Closing net book value

6,421               2,654            2,666            

The land and buildings are categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. During the year there were no transfers
between the levels of fair value hierarchy.
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Unobservable inputs within the discounted cashflow analysis

Discount rate

Terminal yield

Rental growth

Unobservable inputs within the income capitalisation approach

Capitalisation rate

Net market income per m2

Earthquake repair costs

Asset classification 
description and valuation 
approach

Valuer

Fair value at 30 
June 2016 

$000

Inputs used to 
measure fair 

value

Range of 
significant 

unobservable 
inputs

Weighted 
average

Increase

Impact on the fair value due to a change in a significant unobservable input.

Telfer Young
CBRE

The rate which is applied to a property’s 
sustainable net income at the end of an 
assumed holding period to derive an 
estimated future market value.

The rate, determined through analysis of 
comparable market-related sales 
transactions, which is applied to a property's 
future net cash flows to convert those cash 
flows into a present value.

Net market
income per m2

Capitalisation rate

Decrease

Decrease

Decrease

Increase

Decrease

Increase

Increase

Increase

Decrease

*Includes a deduction of $857,000 for costs to repair earthquake damage.

The table below summarises the valuation approach and the principle assumptions used in establishing the fair values in
2016:

$86
               8.27% 

2.00%              

11.10%            
 7.50% -9.00% 

$50-$122 
  7.00% - 9.75% 

2.00%              

11.10%            
  7.50% -9.00% 

$50-$122 
  7.00% - 9.75% 

2,837*

Capitalisation approach and 
discounted cashflow approach

Land
Income

Capitalisation approach and 
discounted cashflow approach

11.10%            
               8.27% 

$86
               8.27% 

               8.27% 

Rental Growth

Discount rate
Terminal Yield

Rental Growth

Discount rate
Terminal Yield

Net market
income per m2

Capitalisation rate

2,654               

Specialist estimate of earthquake repair 
costs to bring building to required standard.

Earthquake repair 
costs

857,000$         857,000$         

Telfer Young
CBRE

11.10%            

Fair value measurement sensitivity to 
significant unobservable inputs:

Increase in 
input

Decrease in 
input

The valuer’s assessment of the net market 
income attributable to the property.

The rate of return, determined through 
analysis of comparable market related sales 
transactions, which is applied to the market 
rent to assess a property’s value.

The annual growth rate applied to the market 
rent over an assumed holding period.

Unobservable inputs within the capitalisation and discounted cashflow approach
Decrease Increase

Buildings
Income
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-          Impairment (53)                    

1,125                

30 June 201730 June 2018

1,125                

(769)                  

3,262                

                 1,375
(1,091)                  

(250)                  

4,685                

560                   
(262)                  

(70)                    
(10)                    

3,696                
(232)                  
3,464                

3,235                
54                     
(6)                      

(21)                    

3,484                
(222)                  
3,262                

(1)                      
298                   

1,125                

30 June 2017
$000

1,024                

298                   

289                   
10                     

1,375                
(250)                  

356                   

$000

Opening balance

30 June 2018

Goodwill
Cost
Impairment
Net book value

421                   

-                        
Impairment
Acquisition

Cost

Closing balance

Additions

Total intangible assets

*$3,591,000 relates to the S-Clave project (2017: $3,130,000)

3,464                

4,241                

Amortisation

Additions

Disposals
Amortisation

Closing balance

3,262                
282                   

Opening balance

16. Intangible assets

298                   

748                   
(327)                  

421                   

356                   

351                   

Cost *
Accumulated amortisation and impairment charges
Net book value

Opening balance

Acquired patents, trademarks and licences

Accumulated amortisation and impairment charges
Net book value

Intellectual property

188                   

(12)                    

Closing balance

$000

Titan Slicer
Total

-                        
356                   

774                   
1,125                

356                   351                   

$000

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) generally being the subsidiary or operating segment
to which the goodwill relates, A summary of the unimpaired goodwill allocation is presented below.

Haden & Custance
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(1,901)               
545                   

(2,308)               
2,446                

-                        
Balance at 30 June 2018

24                     

-                        
279                   

(2,118)               
2,180                

2,180                
(1,901)               

(265)                  531                   

Other Temporary Differences arise from provisions for working capital and plant and equipment. 

Amounts (charged) credited to profit and loss
Balance at 30 June 2017

Balance at 1 July 2017
Amounts (charged) credited to profit and loss

(265)                  2,446                

531                   

(214)                  

531                   

Total
$000

Balance at 1 July 2016

$000

4,298                

S-Clave, which represents $3,591,000 of intellectual property, was not yet available for use as at 30 June 2018 and has
therefore been tested for impairment. There has been increased confidence in the ability to commercialise S-Clave.
However, this depends on final testing and trialling. A five year cash flow forecast has been used to estimate the asset's
value in use, discounted at a rate of 18%. On this basis the carrying value of the asset has been deemed to be
unimpaired. S-Clave is anticipated to begin commercialisation in the 2019 financial year. Movement in the above
discount rate by 5% and a reduction in  estimated cashflows by 15%  would still result in no impairment

As at 30 June 2018 the Group derecognised $1,901,000 of tax assets. While the directors remain confident of generating
taxable profits in the future for the reasons outlined in note 3, it has been deemed appropriate to take the benefits of the 
tax losses as profits are generated. As at 30 June 2018 there were $5,434,000 of unrecognised New Zealand tax benefit,
which is available for future offset of taxable profit when generated.

The capitalised balance of deferred tax remaining was recognised on the basis that shareholder continuity has been 
maintained for losses generated from 2011 onwards. The board adopted the budget and cash flow forecast for the year 
to 30 June 2019. The budget indicates that there will be sufficient future taxable profits available for the Group to utilise 
the tax assets recognised.

Notes to the Group Financial Statements cont
For the year ended 30 June 2018

On an annual basis, the recoverable amount of the goodwill is determined based on value in use calculations for the
cash generating unit or group of cash generating units that the intangible relates to. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on management budgets approved by the directors. The goodwill allocated to Titan Slicer relates to
the acquisition and subsequent integration of Titan Slicer Limited in July 2012. The goodwill allocated to Haden &
Custance relates to the acquisition in December 2016 .

Goodwill has been tested for impairment as at 30 June 2018. Each cash generating unit or group of cash generating
units which carries goodwill has prepared a discounted cash flow on a value-in-use basis using past experience of
sales, growth, operating costs and margin, and external sources of information where appropriate to determine their
expectations of the future. Cash flows beyond five years have been extrapolated using estimated terminal growth rates
which do not exceed the long term growth rate for the industries in which the business units operate. Titan Slicer goodwill
has been impaired by a further $769,000 in the current year bringing the balance of Titan goodwill to $Nil.The average
growth rate used for Haden & Custance is 19.3%. The terminal growth rate was 2% and the cash flows were discounted
at a discount rate of 13%. The forecasted future cash flows have been determined to support the carrying value of this
cash generating unit, including the allocated goodwill. Movement in the above three inputs respectively of 1% with all the
remaining variables held constant will still arrive at a sufficent head room.

(265)                  

$000

4,754                

17. Deferred tax asset

(289)                  

Other 
Temporary 
Differences

$000
Buildings

745                   

Tax Losses

Page 31Group Financial Statements 2018Mercer Group Limited

38 MERCER GROUP LTD.  |  GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 201838

Notes to the Group Financial Statements cont.
For the year ended 30 June 2018



Notes to the Group Financial Statements cont
  For the year ended 30 June 2018

Investment in associate

19. Trade and other payables

All trade and other payables are expected to mature within 12 months after balance date.

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
$000

3,823                
1,112                
4,935                

4,442                
153                   

Trade creditors
Sundry creditors and accruals
Total creditors and accruals 4,595                

$000

18. Investment in subsidiaries and associates

100%

100%

100%

% ownership

Mercer Technologies Limited

% ownership

Mercer Products Pty Limited

Holds Intellectual Property New Zealand

Non-trading subsidiary, formerly a 
supplier of stainless steel products

100%

100%

100%

Titan Design Limited was established on 3 July 2012. The Group has a 25% investment in Titan Design Limited and has
been accounted for as an Associate. The share of profits from the associate was $Nil (2017: $Nil) recognised in the
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Titan Design Limited

New Zealand

New Zealand

New ZealandFunds a Trade NZ person for 
sourcing leads  in Australia

25%

United States

25%Intellectual Property company

Stainless Alliance Group Ltd
Associate

25%

100%

25%

All subsidiaries and associates have a 30 June balance date and the shares held in the subsidiaries are classed as
ordinary.

Subsidiaries Activities Location
2018 2017

100%100%

New Zealand

New Zealand

Australia

100%Stainless steel fabricator and 
equipment manufacture

Specialised food cutting equipment 
sales and service

Non-trading stainless steel 
equipment sales and service

Mercer Stainless Pty Limited

Titan Slicer Limited

Mercer North America Limited

Designs and manufactures 
automated handling systems

Haden and Custance 2016 Limited

Mercer Stainless Limited.   

Australia

Australia

Mercer Technologies Pty Limited

Non-trading subsidiary, formerly a 
distributor of kitchen products

Non-trading subsidiary, formerly a 
stainless steel fabricator and 
equipment manufacturer

100%

100% 100%

100%

100%

100%
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Gresham Finance loan balance
Gresham Finance payable for deferred consideration
Other Loans

The Group has secured banking facilities with BNZ comprised of the following:

• A committed cash advance facility of $5,000,000, maturing 30 September 2019; and

• A loan facility of $1,316,480 with regular repayments of $30,580 per month falling due from June 2018, maturing  30 
September 2019; and

• An overdraft  facility of $1,000,000 repayable on demand; and 

• A temporary overdraft  facility of $250,000 repayable on demand. This facility limit expires 4 September 2018.

30 June 2018
$000

The outstanding payable financial arrangement with Gresham Finance for $398,000 at an interest rate of 12%, which
relates to the deferred consideration from the sale of interiors business was discharged in full during the year.

Bank loans and overdrafts are secured by a composite debenture over the Group's assets, supported by a registered first
charge over the properties. 

1,309                
6,373                
7,682                

6,286                

370                   

30 June 2017
$000

6,629                

7,682                

6,286                
-                        

Total borrowings

Contractual maturity
Within one year
Later than one year 5,916                

6,286                

349                   

306                   

-                        
-                        398                   

Bank loans

Notes to the Group Financial Statements cont
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20. Borrowings
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Group

Issued and fully paid up capital

Balance at beginning of the year
Shares issued during the year
Capital raising costs
Share consolidation 20:1
Balance at the end of the year

110                   
101                   
211                   

(13)                    

Balance at beginning of the year
Net exchange difference on translation of overseas subsidiaries

2,871                Balance at the end of the year

Balance at the end of the year

Balance at the end of the year

(13)                    

(82)                    

2,871                Balance at beginning of the year

-                        
211                   

211                   

30 June 2018
$000

30 June 2017
$000

-                        
(13)                    (69)                    

22. Retained earnings and other reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve

(35,081)             (42,922)             

(35,081)             

(7,841)               

2,871                

3,069                

2,871                

Share based payment reserves
Balance at beginning of year
Value of employee services

Balance at end of the year

23. Dividends

Total other reserves

(28,119)             

(6,962)               Deficit for the year

Asset revaluation reserve

3,000                
Retained earnings
Balance at beginning of the year
Prior year adjustment -                        -                        

No dividend was paid or declared (2017: Nil).

There are no restrictions on distribution of reserves. The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record foreign
exchange differences arising on the translation of overseas subsidiaries. The asset revaluation reserve records
revaluation movements on land and buildings. The share based payments reserve is used to record the value of
employee services payable through equity and the resulting transfer to equity on issue of the shares.

30 June 2018
# of shares

30 June 2017
# of shares

30 June 2018
$000

30 June 2017
$000

-                        
64,520,706       

57,595,206       

41,522              
(1,094,308,744)

-                        

64,520,706       

44,366              
-                        

All ordinary shares are authorised and rank equally with one vote attached to each fully paid ordinary share. Shares have
no par value. 

Shares issued during the year were paid for in cash.  Part of the proceeds were used to repay bank debt and the 
Gresham Finance loan. 

57,595,206       
-

21. Share Capital

41,522              

Shares

44,366              

-                        (120)                  (352)                  

311,970,446     
839,933,504     

57,595,206       
6,925,500         8,399                

41,522              
2,964                

33,475              
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Less : Purchase of Haden & Custance negative working capital
Add: deferred consideration for sale of business assets
Less: Inventory provision
Less : Debtors provision
Plus (Less): restructure provision released (provided)
Net movement in Statement of Cashflows

618                               

Inventories
Total

-                            

(1,441)                   (983)                              

-                            (27)                                
370                               

467                       

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

-                            

Trade debtors and prepayments 995                       

Given the deficit in 2017 and 2018 the instruments above are anti-dilutive. Accordingly the number of shares used in the
diluted earnings per share calculation reflects both the basic and diluted number of ordinary shares. On 9 January 2017
the company completed a share consolidation, for every 20 ordinary shares held by shareholders these were
consolidated into 1 ordinary share. As a result the number of ordinary shares outstanding have been adjusted
proportionately as if the share consolidation took place at the start of 2016. 

30 June 2018
$000

235                       

25. Change in working capital

Trade creditors and employee entitlements

$000

(16.96) cents
(16.96) cents

Changes in working capital recognised in the net cash flow (outflow) inflow from operating activities:

24. Earnings per share

30 June 2017
# of shares

30 June 2018
# of shares

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attribute to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during year.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to the equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year adjusted to assume conversion of the dilutive
potential of ordinary shares as a result of warrants on issue, and the exercise of share options where the weighted
average market price of ordinary shares during the period exceeds the exercise price of the option/warrant. 

Basic and diluted

Total

Deficit attributable to the shareholders of the Company ($000)                           (6,962)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue:

Basic
Warrants
Options
Equity based remuneration

                            -
                            -
                            -

62,257,810           
                                    -

41,038,248                   

            62,257,810                    40,282,847
                                    -
                        755,401

3,115                    (1,227)                           

755                               
(1,205)                           

2,859                    
4,089                    

(7,841)                   
(12.60) cents
(12.60) cents

30 June 2017

(185)                              
(1,775)                           
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363                   

193                   
Later than one year but not later than five years -                        170                   

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating 
leases are receivable as follows

The Group leases premises, plant and equipment. Operating leases held over properties give the Group the right to 
renew the lease subject to a rental review by the lessor. There are no renewal options or options to purchase in respect 
of plant and equipment held under operating lease.

Guarantees to bankers for bank guarantees issued to third parties from which it is 
anticipated that no material liabilities will arise

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating 
leases are payable as follows

Non-cancellable

Within one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years

Non-cancellable sublease receivables

Operating lease commitments

27. Commitments

26. Contingent liabilities

30 June 2018
$000

3,755                

3,904                

Guarantee to bankers for credit card facilities up to a limit of

Non-cancellable

Within one year 170                   

170                   

149                   
4,970                

5,069                

30 June 2017
$000

99                     

220                   
1,848                

495                   
1,133                

-                        
1,390                

436                   
954                   

30 June 2018
$000

30 June 2017
$000
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1,231 1,020                

Notes to the Group Financial Statements cont
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28. Related party transactions

(a) Directors

The names of persons who were directors of the company at any time during the financial year are as follows:
J F Dennehy, R Rookes and P Smart.

(b) Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation for the year ended 30 June 2018 and the year ended 30 June 2017 is set out
below. The key management personnel are all the directors of the company and the executives with the greatest
authority for the strategic direction and management of the company.

154

Short term benefits
Long term benefits
Share based payments
Directors' fees

(ii) Other shares

(i) Share options

The weighted average fair value of shares and options was determined based on an equity valuation of the business at
the date these arrangements were entered into. The significant inputs into the model at the date of the share based
arrangements were an assumed share price of 35c per share and risk free interest rate of 2.50%. For the share options
volatility, was determined based on industry norms, of 36%.

Share options are granted to selected employees. The option price increases the further forward dated the vesting date
is. Options are exercisable only on the vesting date. Options are conditional on the employee being in service on the
vesting date. The vesting date can be brought forward if agreed to by the Shareholders at a Special General Meeting.

These options have replaced previous options mentioned in June 2017 Annual Financial Statements. In November 2017,
Mr J Dennehy, Director and Board Chair, was issued  options as follows:
a) to subscribe for 625,000 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company at an exercise price of $0.40 per share 
exercisable in August 2018.

These options have replaced previous options mentioned in June 2017 Annual Financial Statements. In November 2017,
Mr R Rookes, CEO, was issued options as follows:
a) to subscribe for 833,333 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company exercisable at $0.30 per share exercisable in 
August 2018; and
b) to subscribe for 777,777 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company at an exercise price of $0.45 per share 
exercisable in August 2019. 

In November 2017, Mr I McGregor, CFO, was issued options as follows:
a) to subscribe for 166,667 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company exercisable at $0.30 per share exercisable in 
August 2018; and
b) to subscribe for 111,111 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company at an exercise price of $0.45 per share 
exercisable in August 2019. 

-                        

(c) Equity instruments

30 June 2017
$000

800                   

30 June 2018
$000

1,029
48 15                     

Total

101                   
104                   
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28. Related party transactions

(a) Directors

The names of persons who were directors of the company at any time during the financial year are as follows:
J F Dennehy, R Rookes and P Smart.

(b) Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation for the year ended 30 June 2018 and the year ended 30 June 2017 is set out
below. The key management personnel are all the directors of the company and the executives with the greatest
authority for the strategic direction and management of the company.

154

Short term benefits
Long term benefits
Share based payments
Directors' fees

(ii) Other shares

(i) Share options

The weighted average fair value of shares and options was determined based on an equity valuation of the business at
the date these arrangements were entered into. The significant inputs into the model at the date of the share based
arrangements were an assumed share price of 35c per share and risk free interest rate of 2.50%. For the share options
volatility, was determined based on industry norms, of 36%.

Share options are granted to selected employees. The option price increases the further forward dated the vesting date
is. Options are exercisable only on the vesting date. Options are conditional on the employee being in service on the
vesting date. The vesting date can be brought forward if agreed to by the Shareholders at a Special General Meeting.

These options have replaced previous options mentioned in June 2017 Annual Financial Statements. In November 2017,
Mr J Dennehy, Director and Board Chair, was issued  options as follows:
a) to subscribe for 625,000 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company at an exercise price of $0.40 per share 
exercisable in August 2018.

These options have replaced previous options mentioned in June 2017 Annual Financial Statements. In November 2017,
Mr R Rookes, CEO, was issued options as follows:
a) to subscribe for 833,333 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company exercisable at $0.30 per share exercisable in 
August 2018; and
b) to subscribe for 777,777 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company at an exercise price of $0.45 per share 
exercisable in August 2019. 

In November 2017, Mr I McGregor, CFO, was issued options as follows:
a) to subscribe for 166,667 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company exercisable at $0.30 per share exercisable in 
August 2018; and
b) to subscribe for 111,111 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company at an exercise price of $0.45 per share 
exercisable in August 2019. 

-                        

(c) Equity instruments

30 June 2017
$000

800                   

30 June 2018
$000

1,029
48 15                     

Total

101                   
104                   
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Expired

Grant-date

November 2015
November 2015
November 2015
November 2017 625    -          
November 2017 1,000 -          
November 2017 889    -          

28. Subsequent events
There were no subsequent events.

During the year the $398,000 balance of the deferred consideration for the sale of Interiors was settled and discharged
in full.

As at 30 June 2018 Mercer Group had repaid in full a $306,000 loan to Gresham Finance Limited.

August 2018
August 2018
August 2019

40.00             
30.00             
45.00             

641                   

Vesting expiry date

Gresham Finance payable for deferred consideration
Gresham Finance loan balance

(d) Balances owed (to) from associates and related parties

5,357                

2,514                

In November 2017 shareholders approved to issue share options to substitute and replace previously issued share 
options. These substitute share options are detailed above and have a Grant-date of November 2017.

30 June 2018
$000

3,572                
5,500                

August 2017
August 2017
August 2018 7.00               

-                        
-                        7.00               

5.00               
-                        

At 1 July 2017

14,429              

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices:

5.00                 -                        
(4,000)               14.00               

10.36               2,514                
10.36             
38.00             2,514                
10.36             

At 30 June 3018 38.00             

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related weighted average exercise prices are as

30 June 2017

(14,429)             

Options ('000)

Average 
exercise price 

in cents per 
share option

30 June 2018

14,429              
Issued

18,429              

Options ('000)

Average 
exercise 

price in cents 
per share 

Gresham Finance Limited is related to Mercer through Humphry Rolleston who is a former director and current major
shareholder of Mercer. Humphry Rolleston is a director of Gresham Finance Limited and is the ultimate shareholder of
Gresham Finance Limited.

(398)                  
(306)                  

-                        
-                        

The interest free advance to the associate is repayable by way of future royalty payments due from the sale of certain
Titan Slicer equipment. 

Intellectual property is held by associates and recovered by way of a royalty on sales of the equipment concerned. 

Advances owed from associates

(e) Terms and conditions of related party transactions

-                        

14,429              

$000
30 June 2017

Shares ('000)
2018

price in cents 
per share 

option
2017

5.97                 

Shares ('000)
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Shareholders of Mercer Group Limited 

Opinion We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mercer Group Limited (‘the 
Company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’), which comprise the group statement of 
financial position as at 30 June 2018, and the group statement of comprehensive income, 
group statement of movements in equity and group statement of cash flow for the year 
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements, on pages 11 to 45, 
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as 
at 30 June 2018, and its consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial 
Reporting Standards (‘NZ IFRS’) and International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’). 

Basis for opinion We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (‘ISAs’) 
and International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (‘ISAs (NZ)’). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

We are independent of the Group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 
(Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing 
and Assurance Standards Board and the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

Other than in our capacity as auditor and the provision of advisory services, we have no 
relationship with or interests in the Company or any of its subsidiaries. These services 
have not impaired our independence as auditor of the Company and Group. 

Audit materiality 

 

 

 

 

 

We consider materiality primarily in terms of the magnitude of misstatement in the 
financial statements of the Group that in our judgement would make it probable that the 
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced 
(the ‘quantitative’ materiality). In addition, we also assess whether other matters that 
come to our attention during the audit would in our judgement change or influence the 
decisions of such a person (the ‘qualitative’ materiality). We use materiality both in 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work. 

We determined materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole to be $420,000. 

Key audit matters Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. 

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter  

Cashflow forecasts and capital adequacy 
considerations (Note 3) 

The Group has reported losses and net cash outflows 
from operating activities over recent years. For the year 
ended 30 June 2018, the Group incurred a deficit from 
operations after finance costs and taxation of $7,841,000 
(2017:$6,962,000) and net cash outflows from operating 
activities was $592,000 (2017: $4,706,000).   

The Group has prepared a cash flow forecast that 
supports its conclusion on the future viability of the 
Group’s business operations as a going concern. The 
forecast includes key assumptions as to revenue growth; 
available debt facilities; operating expenditure 
requirements; capital expenditure requirements and 

We assessed the current funding arrangements in place for 
the Group by: 

• obtaining relevant loan documentation and confirming 
the outstanding loan balances; 

• assessing whether there were any applicable covenant 
requirements; and 

• identifying any scheduled repayments or maturity of 
borrowings impacting the Group’s cash outlays. 

We evaluated the appropriateness of the going concern 
assessment prepared by the Group by:  

• challenging the reasonableness of the underlying 
assumptions used by the Group in preparing its cash 
flow forecast; 

• performing sensitivity analysis to determine the 
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expected funding arrangements. Note 3 to the 
consolidated financial statements discloses the key 
assumptions relating to the Group’s going concern 
assessment.  

The going concern assessment involves significant 
management judgement and achievement of these 
assumptions is critical to the ongoing business viability. 
For these reasons, we have included this as a Key Audit 
Matter. 

robustness of the cash flow forecasts and the impact of 
changing key assumptions;  

• evaluating the support for the Group’s forecast sales 
and ability to fulfil customer orders; and 

• determining whether the forecasted cash flow and 
profitability was sufficient to meet the requirements of 
the funding arrangements. 

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made by 
the Group in the financial statements. 

Capitalisation of unutilised tax losses - (policy (f) & 
Notes 3, 10 & 17) 

At 30 June 2018, the Group recognised deferred tax 
assets of $545,000 (2017: $2,446,000) mainly relating 
to accumulated tax losses, and derecognised $1,901,000 
of tax losses (2017: $2,118,000) during the year. As of 
year-end, unrecognised accumulated tax losses 
amounted to $9,059,000 (2017: $6,499,000). 

The recognition of deferred tax assets is subject to 
certain criteria, which includes: 

• the Group generating future taxable profits to utilise 
the said tax losses; and 

• shareholder continuity rules under New Zealand tax 
legislation. 

We have included this as a Key Audit Matter in our report 
as: 

• the unrecognised tax losses are quantitatively 
material to the financial statements at 30 June 
2017; 

• the Group issued rights and shares during the year; 
• the Group did not generate taxable profits in recent 

years; and 
• the significant level of judgement exercised by 

management in evaluating the above criteria.    

 

 
We performed procedures to evaluate the Group’s 
assessment for recognition of unutilised tax losses as  
deferred tax assets by:  

• challenging the reasonableness of the underlying 
assumptions used by the Group in preparing forecasts 
by considering historic profitability, accuracy of 
budgetary controls and expected future operating 
activities to generate future taxable profits; 

• performing sensitivity analysis to determine the 
robustness of the forecasts and the impact of changing 
key assumptions; 

• reviewing the Group’s assessment of shareholder 
continuity and tax losses carried forward; and 

• utilising our internal tax specialists to assess the 
Group’s position relating to the shareholder continuity 
rules. 

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made by 
the Group in the financial statements.  

Impairment assessment of goodwill and 
intellectual property - (policy (i) & (q) and Notes 3 
& 16) 

At 30 June 2018, the Group has goodwill of $356,000 
(2017: $1,125,000) and intellectual property of 
$3,464,000 (2017: $3,262,000) relating to its Haden & 
Custance and Mercer Technologies businesses. The Group 
is required to assess, at least annually, whether these 
intangible assets are impaired. During the year, the 
Group has recognised a further impairment of $769,000 
(2017: $250,000) on goodwill relating to Titan Slicer 
(Note 16).  

The recoverable amounts of these intangible assets are 
highly dependent on the expected future cash flows 
generated by the underlying businesses, and in the case 
of intellectual property, its viability for commercialisation. 
Should these expected future cash flows not eventuate, 
these intangible assets would be impaired. 

We have included impairment assessments of goodwill 
and intellectual property as a Key Audit Matter due to the 
significance of these assets to the financial statements, 
history of the Group’s recent operating losses and the 
level of management estimates involved in determining 
the recoverable amounts. 

 

 

 

 

 
 
We performed procedures to evaluate the Group’s 
impairment assessment of goodwill and intellectual property 
by: 

• challenging the reasonableness of the underlying 
assumptions used by the Group in preparing the 
valuation models that supports the recoverability of the 
recognised intangible assets. Specifically we challenged 
the Group’s discount rates, long-term growth rates and 
expected future cash flows used in the models; 

• performing sensitivity analysis to determine the 
robustness of the valuation models and the impact of 
changing key assumptions; and 

• utilising our internal valuation specalists to assess the 
Group’s estimates used in the valuation models. 

We also assessed the audit evidence for the technical and 
commercial feasibility of the Group’s intellectual property 
assets which are not yet ready for use as at year-end. 
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Other information 

 

The directors are responsible on behalf of the Group for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information in the Annual Report that accompanies the 
consolidated financial statements and the audit report. The Annual Report is expected to 
be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes 
available and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 
 
When we read the other information in the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the 
directors and consider further appropriate actions. 

Directors’ responsibilities 
for the consolidated 
financial statements  

The directors are responsible on behalf of the Group for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with NZ IFRS and 
IFRS, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible on behalf 
of the Group for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, 
or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities 
for the audit of the 
consolidated financial 
statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 
and ISAs (NZ) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these consolidated financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements is located on the External Reporting Board’s website at:  

https://www.xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors-
responsibilities/audit-report-1 

This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

Restriction on use 

 

This report is made solely to the Company’s shareholders, as a body. Our audit has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s shareholders those matters we are 
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
Company’s shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Paul Bryden, Partner 
for Deloitte Limited 
Christchurch, New Zealand 
29 August 2018 
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Statutory Information 
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Mercer Board of Directors 
 
Principal Activity 
 
The Board is the governing body of Mercer Group Limited and currently has three members.  The directors are elected 
by the shareholders to oversee the management of the Company and are responsible for all corporate governance 
matters. 
 
In accordance with the constitution, all directors will continue in Office, until the 2018 Annual General Meeting, when one 
director will retire by rotation. Directors being eligible, may offer themselves for re-election in accordance with the 
Company’s constitution. Mr Rookes will continue his role as Chief Executive Officer. 
 
 
Directors holding office during the period were: 
 
Directors Holding Office Remuneration 
 2018 2017 
John Dennehy [Independent Chairman] $116,000 $65,000 
Paul Smart [Independent] $38,000 $38,000 
Richard Rookes $0 $0 
   
   
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  
  

 
 

   
 

  
   

   

Committees of the Board

The Board has an Audit Committee and a Remuneration Committee.

Audit Committee

The function of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in carrying out its responsibilities under the Companies Act
1993 and the Financial Reporting Act 1993.  In particular, to ensure that management maintains sound accounting
practices, policies and controls, and to review and make appropriate inquiries into the audit of the Group’s financial
statements by the external auditors.

The committee members are:
• Paul Smart [Chairman]
• Richard Rookes
• John Dennehy

External Auditors
The board ensures the auditor has a fair remuneration for the agreed scope of the statutory audit and audit-related
services. This year the audit was performed by Deloitte.

Auditor’s Remuneration Remuneration
2018 2017

Audit of Financial Statements $95,000 $90,000 
Audit of Financial Statements relating to prior year 
Other assurance services 

$18,000 
$12,000 

$25,000 
$7,000 

 
 
Remuneration Committee 
 
The function of the Remuneration Committee is to make recommendations to the Board concerning Executive Directors’ 
and Executive Officers’ remuneration. 
 
The committee members are: 

• Paul Smart 
• John Dennehy. 
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Employee Remuneration 
 
The number of employees within the Group receiving remuneration and benefits above $100,000 are indicated in the 
following table:  
 
 2018 2017  
$100,000 - 109,999 7 3 Note that these figures include equity based payments 

amounting to $Nil (2017: $Nil) for share payments (see 
note 20) of the Group Financial Statements. 

$110,000 - 119,999 5 3 
$120,000 - 129,999 2 1 
$130,000 - 139,999 1 -  
$140,000 - 149,999 1 - Diversity 

At 30 June 2018, Mercer employed 120 staff, including 
55 in the workshop, of which 111 (93%) were male and 9 
(8%) were female. Compared to 2017 where 121 (92%) 
were male and 11 (8%) were female employees. MGL 
encourages representation across both genders and all 
ethnicities and have a policy hiring on merit. 
 
The 3 directors and 2 officers of the company at            
30 June 2018 are male compared to 3 male directors 
and 2 male officers in 2017. 

$150,000 - 159,999 1 - 
$160,000 - 169,999 - - 
$170,000 - 179,999 1 - 
$180,000 - 219,999 1 1 
$220,000 - 280,000 1 1 
$281,000 - 349,999 1 1 
   

 
 
Corporate governance processes 
 
Pursuant to NZX Listing Rule 10.4.5(i) the Company is required to disclose in this annual report the extent to which its 
corporate governance processes materially differ from the principles set out in the NZX Corporate Governance Best 
Practice Code. 
 
The code of ethics and code of business principles govern how each of the companies which make up the Mercer Group 
Limited group must conduct its affairs.  The codes cover the requirement to avoid conflicts of interest and demand high 
standards of honesty, integrity and fairness. 
 
The Audit Committee operates under an approved charter, the majority of the members of that committee are 
independent directors and the committee meets at least two times per year. 
 
The following principles / processes recommended in the code are not complied with at the date of this report: 
 

1. Directors appointments - a nomination committee is not considered appropriate due to the size of the board; 
2. Director remuneration - a remuneration committee to consider directors fees is not considered appropriate due 

to the size of the board; 
3. Board performance - formal procedures to assess individual and board performance have not been developed. 

 
 

Statutory Information 
For the year ended 30 June 2018 
 
 
 
Directors’ Interest Register 
 
Where a director has declared an interest in a particular entity, as a shareholder and/or director, the declaration serves 
as notice that the director may benefit from any transaction between the parent or Group and the identified entities. 
 

Name of Director Appointed          Appointment         Description of interest 
 
John Dennehy 
 
 
 

 
26-Feb-15 
 
 

 
Non-executive Independent 
Chairman and a member of 
the Audit Committee 

 
Director -  Zagato Limited  
Director - Kiwirail Holdings Limited 
Shareholder – Avanti Finance 
Shareholder – Railway Finance 

 
Richard Rookes 
 
 

 
21-Feb-11 

 
Executive and member of the 
Audit Committee 
 

 

 
Paul Smart 
 
 
 

 
31-Jul-12 
 

 
Non-executive and 
independent Chairman of the 
Audit Committee 

 
Director & Chair Audit Committee - 
Intercity Group Limited  
Director -  Solar City Limited 
Director - Berwick Holdings Limited 
Director -  Sunrise Consulting Ltd 
Director – Argus 
Director – Geo40 
Trustee -   Bellbird Trust 
Trustee -   Saddleback Trust 
 

 
 
Directors Shareholding 
 
Directors 
Shareholding 

Voting 
Securities 
Total 

Beneficial Interest Associated Persons Non Beneficial 

  2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
J Dennehy        
Zagato Limited 500,000 500,000 500,000 - - - - 
John Francis Dennehy 30,000 30,000 30,000 - - - - 
        
 530,000  530,000 - - - - 
 0.82%       
P Smart        
Sunrise Consulting Ltd 257,500 257,500 257,500 - - - - 
        
 257,500 257,500 257,500 - - - - 
 0.40%       
R Rookes        
Richard George 
Rookes 

602,500 602,500 602,500 - - - - 

 602,500 602,500 602,500 - - - - 
 0.93%       
Total Shares in issue 
at 30 June 2018 

64,520,706       

 
 
Directors Notice 
 
No member of the Board of Mercer Group Limited, or any subsidiary, issued a notice requesting to use information 
received in their capacity as directors which would not otherwise have been available to them. 
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Directors’ Interest Register 
 
Where a director has declared an interest in a particular entity, as a shareholder and/or director, the declaration serves 
as notice that the director may benefit from any transaction between the parent or Group and the identified entities. 
 

Name of Director Appointed          Appointment         Description of interest 
 
John Dennehy 
 
 
 

 
26-Feb-15 
 
 

 
Non-executive Independent 
Chairman and a member of 
the Audit Committee 

 
Director -  Zagato Limited  
Director - Kiwirail Holdings Limited 
Shareholder – Avanti Finance 
Shareholder – Railway Finance 

 
Richard Rookes 
 
 

 
21-Feb-11 

 
Executive and member of the 
Audit Committee 
 

 

 
Paul Smart 
 
 
 

 
31-Jul-12 
 

 
Non-executive and 
independent Chairman of the 
Audit Committee 

 
Director & Chair Audit Committee - 
Intercity Group Limited  
Director -  Solar City Limited 
Director - Berwick Holdings Limited 
Director -  Sunrise Consulting Ltd 
Director – Argus 
Director – Geo40 
Trustee -   Bellbird Trust 
Trustee -   Saddleback Trust 
 

 
 
Directors Shareholding 
 
Directors 
Shareholding 

Voting 
Securities 
Total 

Beneficial Interest Associated Persons Non Beneficial 

  2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
J Dennehy        
Zagato Limited 500,000 500,000 500,000 - - - - 
John Francis Dennehy 30,000 30,000 30,000 - - - - 
        
 530,000  530,000 - - - - 
 0.82%       
P Smart        
Sunrise Consulting Ltd 257,500 257,500 257,500 - - - - 
        
 257,500 257,500 257,500 - - - - 
 0.40%       
R Rookes        
Richard George 
Rookes 

602,500 602,500 602,500 - - - - 

 602,500 602,500 602,500 - - - - 
 0.93%       
Total Shares in issue 
at 30 June 2018 

64,520,706       

 
 
Directors Notice 
 
No member of the Board of Mercer Group Limited, or any subsidiary, issued a notice requesting to use information 
received in their capacity as directors which would not otherwise have been available to them. 
 

MERCER GROUP LTD.  |  GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018 51

Statutory Information
For the year ended 30 June 2018



 
 

Statutory Information 
For the year ended 30 June 2018 
 
Directors’ Indemnity and Insurance 
 
Mercer Group Limited has arranged a policy of directors’ liability insurance that ensures that officers and directors will not 
generally incur monetary losses as a result of actions undertaken by them as directors.  Certain actions are specifically 
excluded, for example the incurring of penalties and fines which may be imposed in respect of breaches of the law.  The 
total cost of this insurance for the financial year was $19,176. 
 
 
Donations 
 
Mercer made no donations during either year. 
 
 
Shareholders Analysis 
 
The shareholder information detailed in this report has been taken from the Company’s Register as at 30th June 2018. 
 
 
Domicile of security holders Number of 

holders 
% Number of 

shares held 
% 

New Zealand 603 97.26 64,044,837 99.26 
Australia 10 1.61 30,592 0.05 
United Kingdom 1 0.16 19 0.00 
China 1 0.16 331,675 0.51 
Other 5 0.81 113,583 0.18 
 620 100.0 64,520,706 100.0 

 
 
Range of shareholdings Number of 

holders 
% Number of 

shares held 
% 

1 to 1,000 303 48.87 80,034 0.12 
1,001 to 5,000 106 17.10 260,659 0.40 
5,001 to 10,000 47 7.58 351,075 0.54 
10,001 to 100,000 116 18.71 4,576,221 7.09 
100,001 and over 48 7.74 59,252,617 91.85 
 620 100.0 64,520,706 100.0 

 
 
Substantial security holders 
 
The following information is given in accordance with Section 293 of the Finance Markets Conduct Act 2013.  According 
to notices received, the following persons were substantial security holders in the Company as at 30th June 2018: 

 
  Relevant Interest 

Voting Securities 
% of Shares 

    
 HJD Rolleston 33,947,114* 52.61 
 RD Shepperd 1,753,532* 2.72 
    
    
 
* The total number of voting securities of the Company on issue at 30th June 2018 was 64,520,706. 
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Shareholder information 
 
The information in the disclosure below have been taken from the Company’s register at 30th June 2018. 
 
Twenty largest shareholders: 

 
Holder Number held  % of Issue 

Capital 
Asset Management Limited          27,778,788                43.05  
New Zealand Central Securities Depository Limited            6,513,699   10.10 
Humphry John D Rolleston & Graham William Riley            5,799,298                   8.99  
Alison Mercer Limited            3,750,000                   5.81  
Forsyth Barr Custodians Ltd            2,185,777                   3.39  
Ian Alexander McGregor                875,500                   1.36  
Rodger David Shepherd                720,517                   1.12  
Whitford Equity Investments Limited                714,286                   1.11  
FNZ Custodians Limited                698,714                   1.08  
Paul Hewitson & Christopher John Stark                676,801                   1.05  
Leveraged Equities Finance                660,406                   1.02  
Richard George Rookes                602,500                   0.93  
Zagato Limited                500,000                   0.77  
Stainley Park Limited                 500,000                   0.77  
Richard Robson & AS                500,000                   0.77  
Spence Investment Holdings Limited                497,512                   0.77  
Custodial Services Limited                420,219                   0.65  
K One W One Limited                375,000                   0.58  
Barry David Lobb                350,016                   0.54  
Vienna Investments Limited                331,675                   0.51  
Totals 54,450,708  84.37 
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Company Directory 
 
REGISTERED OFFICE   SOLICITORS    SHARE REGISTRY 
53 Lunns Road    Buddle Finlay    Link Market Services 
Middleton    83 Victoria Street    PO Box 91976 
Christchurch    Christchurch    Auckland 1142 
         
     
 
 
BANKERS    AUDITORS 
Bank of New Zealand Limited  Deloitte 
Level 1, 86 Highbrook Drive  Level 4 
East Tamaki    151 Cambridge Terrace 
Auckland 2013    Christchurch 
 
 
 
 
 

Sites 
 
CHRISTCHURCH      NEW PLYMOUTH 
53 Lunns Road, Christchurch     Corbett Road, Bell Block New Plymouth 
Ph: +64 (3) 348 7039      Ph: +64 (6) 755 1276 
 
HASTINGS       
210 Wilson Rd, Woolwich, Hastings      
Ph: +64 (6) 872 7140  
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